
 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

P.O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360)486-3440  (800)345-2529  FAX (360) 486-3625 

The Red Lion  
2300 Evergreen Park Drive SW  

Olympia, WA 98502 
Please note, agenda items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair 

Public Meeting - January 12, 2017 
10:30 No Study Session - Staff Available to Stakeholders                   Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 

                                                                                                           Amy Hunter, Deputy Director 
11:00 Welcome                                                                                                           Bud Sizemore, Chair 

Executive Session – Working Lunch 
Discuss Pending Investigations, Tribal Negotiations and Litigation 

The Public Meeting will Reconvene at 2:00 pm 
Tab 1 

 
Director’s Report                                                                                       David Trujillo, Director 

• November 10, 2016 Minutes                                                                                                                                                            
• New Licenses and Class III Employees 
• Class III Employees/Snoqualmie 

 
Legislative Update                               Brian Considine, Managing Attorney, Legislative Liaison 

• Memo 
Defaults                                                  Brian Considine, Managing Attorney, Legislative Liaison                             

• Rasy M. Eng, CR 2015-000184 Card Room, Class III Certification, Revocation 
• Megan Ky, CR 2015-000184 Card Room, Class III Certification, Revocation 
• Lalith P. Mulatiyana, CR 2016-01708 Card Room, Class III Certification, Revocation 
• Stewart G. Robertson, CR 2016-01546 Card Room, Class III Certification, Revocation 

 
Fee Restructure Update                                                                   Amy Hunter, Deputy Director 

• Memo 
- ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS – 

Rules Up for Final Action 
Tab 2 

 
Petition from Recreational Gaming Association 
Promotions                                                                                        Tina Griffin, Assistant Director  

• WAC 230-06-030 Restrictions and conditions for gambling promotions. 
• WAC 230-06-031 Using wheels in promotional contests of chance, fund-raising events, or 

gambling activities – Promotional Contests of Chance (PCOC) 
Tab 3 

 
Petition from Warren Montney  
Restrictions and Conditions for Gambling Promotions               Tina Griffin, Assistant Director               

• WAC 230-15-353 Using match play coupons in nonhouse-banked card games. 
• WAC 230-15-453 Using match play or similar coupons in gambling promotions. 

 Public Comment 
 Adjourn 
 
Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings. Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Questions or comments pertaining to 
rule changes should be directed to the Rules Coordinator (360) 486-3447. 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

 
November Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 

The HUB 
676 Woodland Square Loop SE 

Lacey, WA 98503 
November 10, 2016 

 
Commissioners Present:      
Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Chris Stearns  
Ed Troyer  
Kelsey Gray, PhD. 
 
Ex Officios Present: 
Senator Steve Conway 
Senator Mike Hewitt 
Representative Christopher Hurst 
 
Staff Present: 
David Trujillo, Director, Amy Hunter, Deputy Director, Tina Griffin, Assistant Director 
Brian Considine, Staff Attorney/Legal Liaison, Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison,  
John Meader, Assistant Attorney General, Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant 

 
-Public Meeting-                                                                                                   

Chair Sizemore welcomed everyone to the HUB in Lacey. He called the meeting of the 
Washington State Gambling Commission to order at 11:05 a.m. on November 10, 2016 and 
immediately went into Executive Session where the Commissioners discussed Pending 
Investigations, Tribal Negotiations and Litigation.  
 
The public meeting reconvened at 1:10 pm.  
 
The Chair welcomed everyone back to the meeting and introductions were made.  
There were about 50 people in attendance.  
Director Trujillo introduced the Gambling Commission’s newest staff member Heather Songer, 
Public Information Officer. Heather came to the Gambling Commission from the Pierce County 
Sheriff’s Office where she was the Communications Assistant to Commissioner Ed Troyer, and 
from the Pierce County Prosecutor’s Office as the Public Information Coordinator. Welcome 
Heather.  
 
The Commissioners presented Senator Hewitt and Representative Hurst with certificates of 
appreciation for their work with the Commission as ex officio members.  Both are retiring from 
the legislature.    



2 
 

 
Please note, agenda items were taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair 

 
 
Director’s Report:   
Director Trujillo presented the materials for Tab 1.   
 
Tab 1a  
Consent Agenda 
October Minutes/New Licensees  
Commissioner Gray moved to approve the first two items under the Director’s report as 
presented. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 4:0 
Commissioner Gray moved to approve the Class III certifications for the Snoqualmie Tribe as 
presented. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion. 
Commissioner Stearns abstained from the vote for Snoqualmie Tribe.   
The motion passed. 3:0 
 
Tab 1b  
Default 
Fraternal Order of Eagles Auxiliary 03338 in Ephrata, Case No. 2015-00949  
Brian Considine presented the Default to the Commissioners.  
Commissioner Gray asked if the Gambling Commission has heard from the licensee. The 
Gambling Commission has not heard from the licensee. The licensee was not present. 
Commissioner Stearns moved to revoke Fraternal Order of Eagles Auxiliary 03338 gambling 
licenses, as presented. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 4:0 

Tab 1c 
Fee Restructure Work Group Update 
Deputy Director Hunter presented the update on the first Fee Restructure Work Group meeting 
that was held October 24 in SeaTac at the SeaTac Community Center. Chair Sizemore chaired 
the meeting and Commissioner Patterson also attended. There were about 35 people who 
attended the meeting and twelve participated by phone. The next meeting will be in Spokane and 
held at the Hampton Inn by the airport. Representatives who will participate in the Fee 
Restructure Work Group meetings from large charitable non-profits organizations will be Rick 
Newgard with Seattle Junior Hockey Association. Representing the paper manufacturers will be 
Mary Magnuson from North American Fundraising Ticket Manufacturers. Representing the table 
and game manufacturers will be Tom Doyle from Scientific Games. Representing the 
distributors will be Wendy Windsor from WOW Distributing. Tribal representation will be 
Kevin Zenishek from Northern Quest Casino; he will also be representing WIGA. Eric Durban 
from Muckleshoot Casino will be representing the Washington Association of Gaming 



3 
 

Executives (WAGE). Staff is continuing to do outreach to keep everyone informed of the 
discussions. Staff is still looking for a representative for amusement game licensees. 
Representing the card rooms will be Victor Mena from Recreational Gaming Association and 
Theresa Malphrus who has a class F card room license. Representing small pull-tab operators 
will be Janice Carter with Charlie’s Restaurant in Puyallup and Monty Harmon will represent 
Gambling Service Suppliers. Staff will post all representatives along with contact information on 
the Gambling Commission website.  
Senator Conway asked where individuals could find information regarding the fee increases. Ms. 
Hunter indicated that the Gambling Commission website will be the best place to find that 
information or they could contact her directly.  
Chair Sizemore asked staff to check with the Hampton Inn to arrange shuttle service from the 
airport. 
Chair Sizemore called for public comment.  
There was no public comment at this time.   
 
Director Trujillo recognized Representative Hurst and asked him to talk about his bill language 
that will be introduced at this year’s legislative session. Representative Hurst spoke about his 
views on combining the Washington State Lottery and Washington State Gambling Commission 
along with Washington State Horse Racing Commission. Representative Hurst is retiring and 
will not be a Legislator in the upcoming 2017 Legislative Session. Representative Hurst will be 
passing this bill onto a new Representative.  The House Commerce and Gaming Committee will 
have a work session on December 2, 2016 at 10:00 am in the John L. O’Brien Building.  
 
Tab 2 
Economic Market Study on Gaming 
Joseph Weinert, Executive Vice President of Spectrum Gaming Group and Adam Steinberg, 
Senior Vice President, Spectrum Gaming Capital presented the Economic Market Study on 
Gaming, which included a PowerPoint presentation. The Gambling Commission contracted with 
Spectrum Gaming, which is an independent research and consulting firm. Spectrum Gaming 
Group spent five months conducting their research. The focus of the research was on casinos and 
card rooms, which represent more than 95% of all Washington gambling revenues on a net 
receipts basis. Currently, most adults in the state live within a two-hour drive to a class III 
casino.  
Director Trujillo stated this report could be located on our website.  
 
Tab 3  
G2E 2016 Update 
Tom Means presented the materials for Tab 3. Chair Sizemore and Commissioner Troyer, along 
with Commission staff, attended G2E in September. There were over 26,000 attendees and 450 
exhibitors. Every year, staff and Commissioners attend to stay abreast of current and future 
trends in the gambling industry.  
Commissioner Troyer’s observation at G2E was that the mature audience was focused on the 
traditional slot machines whereas the younger audience was focused on virtual reality booths. In 
some cases, there were lines of 25 people at the demo machines.    
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
 



4 
 

 
Tab 4 
Daily Fantasy Sports Update 
Special Agents Tyson Wilson and Dan Frey presented the materials for Tab 4. Currently, there 
are 40 states where Daily Fantasy Sports are operating. Last year, there were 44.  
Commissioner Stearns asked about regulation and minimum internal controls. Special Agent 
Wilson explained that they had third party audits. Commissioner Stearns also asked if any of the 
40 states that allow Daily Fantasy Sports address problem gambling.  Special Agent Wilson will 
look into the question and get back to the Commission.  
 
Tab 7 
Rule Making Process Overview 
Managing Attorney/Legal Liaison Brian Considine presented the materials for Tab 7. Brian gave 
the Commissioners and audience a brief explanation of the Rules process. The Gambling 
Commission is currently in the process of hiring a rules coordinator by mid-January.  
 
Tab 5 
AMVETS Program Review Post #1 
Special Agent Keith Wittmers presented the materials for Tab 5. AMVETS is a fraternal 
organization of U.S. veterans. It was formed in the 1940’s and in 1947, AMVETS became the 
first World War II organization to be charted by Congress.  
Commissioner Gray moved to continue to license AMVETS as a bona fide 
charitable/nonprofit organization, based on the program review. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion. 
The motion passed. 4:0 
 
Tab 6 
Special Olympics of Washington  
Special Agent Donna Khanhasa presented the materials for Tab 6. Dan Wartelle, Vice President 
of Communications for Special Olympics attended the meeting. Commissioner Troyer asked Mr. 
Wartelle about the past raffles and the expectations for future raffles. Mr. Wartelle explained 
there would be more advertising in Eastern Washington and possibly raffle a bigger house on 
waterfront property. He’s confident the raffle will do very well.     
Commissioner Gray moved to approve Special Olympics to conduct an enhanced raffle in 
2017, as presented. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 4:0  
 
Tab 8 
Petition from Teresa Malphrus 
Poker Wagering and Rake Increase 
WAC 230-15-080 Authorized fees and authorized methods of collection 
WAC 230-15-135 Wagering limits for non house-banked card games 
Assistant Director Griffin presented the materials for this tab. There was no comment from the 
petitioner or the Commissioners.  



5 
 

Commissioner Gray moved to approve WAC 230-15-080 and Version 2 of WAC 230-15-135, 
effective 31 days from filing. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 4:0 
 
Tab 9 
Petition from the Recreational Gaming Association 
Promotions 
WAC 230-06-030 Restrictions and conditions for gambling promotions 
WAC 230-06-031 Using wheels in promotional contests of chance, fund raising events, or 
gambling activities- Promotional Contests of Chance (PCOC)  
Assistant Director, Griffin presented the materials for this tab. There was no comment from the 
petitioner or Commissioners. The petition will be up for final action in January. 
 
Tab 10 
Petition from Warren Montney 
Restrictions and Conditions for Gambling Promotions 
WAC 230-15-453 Using match play or similar coupons in gambling promotions. 
Assistant Director Griffin presented the materials for this tab. Commissioner Stearns asked if 
tracking of the promotion coupons was a concern to staff. AD Griffin said it was not.  No 
comment from the petitioner.  
Commissioner Troyer moved to file WAC 230-15-353, for further discussion as recommended 
by staff. 
Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 4:0 
 
There was no public comment.  
 
Chair Sizemore reminded the audience about the next Fee Restructure Workgroup meeting to be 
held in Spokane at the Hampton Inn. He also announced the next Gambling Commission 
meeting would be held at the HUB on January 12 & 13, 2017.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 4:13 PM. 

 



























































































 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
January 3, 2016 
 
 
TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  
         Christopher Stearns, Chair    Senator Steve Conway  
  Bud Sizemore, Vice-Chair    Representative Brandon Vick 

Kelsey Gray, Ph. D.     
   Julia Patterson      
   Ed Troyer 
      
FROM:        Brian J. Considine, Managing Attorney/Legislative Liaison  
 
SUBJECT:  LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
 
The regular 105-day session is scheduled to begin on Monday, January 9, 2017. This is a budget 
year and our main focus will be our agency request legislation. The Governor’s Office approved 
both requests. We are still looking to secure sponsors for both bills, but I hope to have more 
information about our sponsors and possible bill numbers at the January Commission Meeting.   
 
Our bill to remove the 15 voting member requirement for charitable and nonprofit organizations 
to receive a gambling license likely will be submitted to the House Commerce and Gaming and 
Senate Commerce, Labor, and Sports Committees for initial review. Our bill providing qualified 
immunity for our special agents should they act to prevent physical injury to a person or 
substantial property damage regardless of our jurisdiction will likely be submitted to the House 
Public Safety or Judiciary and Senate Law and Justice Committees.    
 
Additionally, there are several new legislators appointed to the House Commerce and Gaming 
and Senate Commerce, Labor, and Sports Committees. David Sawyer (D-Parkland) is the new 
chair and Shelley Kloba (D-Kirkland) is the new vice chair of the House Commerce and Gaming 
Committee. The other new members of the Committee are: Andrew Barkis (R-Lacey); Jessyn 
Farrell (D-Seattle); William “Bill” Jenkin (R-Prosser); Cindy Ryu (D-Shoreline); and Jesse 
Young (R- Gig Harbor). Representatives Condotta, Ranking Minority Member; Vick, Assistant 
Ranking Minority Member; Blake, and Kirby remain on the Committee. 
 
The Senate Commerce, Labor, and Sports Committee remains mostly the same from last session.  
Senators Baumgartner and Braun are chair and vice chair, respectively. Senators Keiser, Ranking 
Minority; Conway; Hasegawa; and King remain on the Committee. Dino Rossi (R-Sammamish); 



Legislative Memorandum to Commissioners 
January 2, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 
Rebecca Saldaña, (D-Seattle); and Lynda Wilson (R-Vancouver) are the new Senators on the 
Committee. 
 
About 71 bills have been pre-filed as of January 2, 2017. Two pre-filed House bills are relevant 
to the Gambling Commission at this time. One bill amends the criminal statute related to a law 
enforcement officers use of deadly force. The other bill amends the Gambling Act’s seizure and 
forfeiture statute to only allow forfeiture of personal or real property if a person is convicted of a 
felony crime. I will provide a full report of any new bills introduced that might impact the 
Commission at the January Commission Meeting. 
 
Lastly, I will need to check-in with you to ensure that the legislative process we have used for 
the last several years meets the needs of the Commission. Normally, I only testify on technical 
aspects of bills at a committee hearing unless you have voted to take a position on a specific bill.  
I always make it clear you are a part-time Commission and either have chosen to not take a 
position on a bill or have not met yet to take a position on the bill. Past committees have been 
very interested in the Commissioners’ position on a bill, and bills are usually brought before you 
for consideration, even if the initial hearing has already passed.  
 
When bills are brought before you, I will make sure to inform you of staff’s position in my 
legislative report, if any.  If the Commission supports a bill, staff would typically work with the 
Chair of the Commission to draft a letter of support for the Committee Chair. The letter would be 
the basis for a “position statement,” which we would post on the agency’s website. The 
Commission would normally take a formal vote if they want to support a bill. Past 
Commissioners have followed a similar process if the Commission is against a bill or supports 
the current law instead. If staff recommend a neutral position on a bill, normally there is not a 
vote.  
 
Staff proposes the above approach this session. The Commissioners can always change this 
approach as session progresses.   
 
 























TAB 2: January 2017 Commission Meeting Agenda. Statutory Authority 9.46.070 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Recreational Gaming Association. 

Describe the Proposed Change / Background 

The Recreational Gaming Association is requesting the following rule changes: 

Promotions (WAC 230-06-030): The proposed change would allow operators to offer gambling 
promotions that: 

• Allow entry based on disclosed criteria;
• Offer lottery tickets as a prize;
• Add additional merchandise or cash prizes to licensed gambling activities;
• Allow licensed manufacturers, distributors, and service suppliers to give licensees cash or

merchandise to offer as a prize; and
• Allow card rooms to use a physical drawing, spinning a wheel or selection from a group of

concealed items to award a prize.

The proposed change clarifies the process when we review and approve gambling promotions. This occurs 
when cash or merchandise provided by a licensed manufacturer distributor or service provider for a single 
gambling promotion is over $25,000. 

Currently, operators offering gambling promotions (1) must offer the promotion to all patrons of their 
establishments, (2) cannot use second elements of chance (spinning wheels, drawings, etc.) except for 
bingo operators and (3) cannot offer lottery tickets as prizes. 

Use of wheels in promotions (WAC 230-06-031): The proposed change would allow card room licensees 
to use spinning wheels in conjunction with promotions they offer to customers. Currently, card room 
licensees cannot use spinning wheels in conjunction with promotions.  

At the August meeting, the Commissioners suggested they work with staff and the RGA to add rule 
language limiting the promotional prizes awarded. 

At their October meeting, Commissioners voted to file version 3. The change would allow manufacturers, 
distributors, and service suppliers to provide prizes to operators for promotions, but such promotions 
require advance approval by the Director if the cash or merchandise for a single promotion exceeds 
$25,000. During that meeting Commissioner Stearns had some questions about when the director would 
disapprove a plan or promotion. Some additional language has been added, see language highlighted in 
yellow.  

Amend 
WAC 230-06-030 Restrictions and conditions for gambling promotions. 

WAC 230-06-031 Using wheels in promotional contests of chance, fund-raising 
events, or gambling activities. 

January 2017 – Final Action  
November 2016 – Up for Further Discussion 
October 2016 – Up for Further Discussion 
September 2016 – Up for Further Discussion 
August 2016 – Final Action on Hours of Play WAC 230-15-025 
May 2016 – Up for Discussion and Possible Filing 
April 2016 – Study Session 



 
A Small Business Economic Impact Statement was not prepared because the rule change would not 
impose more than minor costs to licensees. 
 
Attachments: 

• March 21, 2016, letter from Dolores Chiechi, Executive Director of the RGA. 
• April 25, 2016, email from Dolores Chiechi requesting to hold over the rule change to WAC 

230-15-055.  
• Notices of rule-making sent to all manufacturers, distributors, service suppliers, and card game 

licensees. 
 

Licensees Impacted  
Licensed card rooms, manufacturers, distributors and service suppliers. 

Regulatory Impacts 
This change clarifies which gambling promotions require staff approval before operating and clearly sets 
out the requirement for Director approval. These changes would reduce staff time since staff would not be 
reviewing all promotions.   

Policy Considerations 
None 

Statements supporting 
See comments attached. 
Staff Recommendation 

Final Action on WAC 230-06-031 and Version 3 of WAC 230-06-030  
Proposed Effective Date for Rule Change 

31 days from filing. 
 

  



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 14-17-056, filed 8/15/14, effective 
9/15/14)

WAC 230-06-030  Restrictions and conditions for gambling promo
tions.  Licensees may conduct gambling promotions to encourage players 
to participate in ((a)) the gambling activity((, but you must follow)) 
they are licensed to conduct without our review or approval under 
these restrictions and conditions:

(1) ((You must give all players an equal opportunity to partici
pate; and

(2))) You must establish ((standards)) rules and restrictions to 
determine how you will give promotional prizes and items to players((. 
You must not give the items based on an element of chance, such as a 
drawing or spinning wheel, unless you are doing so as part of a bingo 
game)); and

(((3))) (2) You must display all rules and restrictions clearly 
in the gambling area and include them on promotional materials or ad
vertisements; and

(3) You must give all players eligible for the promotion an equal 
opportunity to participate; and

(4) Except for members-only progressive raffles conducted as au
thorized in WAC 230-11-091, you must not give another chance to par
ticipate in a gambling activity we regulate as a promotional item; and

(((4) You must display all rules or restrictions clearly in the 
gambling area and include them on promotional materials or advertise
ments; and

(5) You must not combine gambling activities and related gambling 
promotions in any way with a promotional contest of chance as defined 
in RCW 9.46.0356.))

(5) As part of a gambling promotion, you may add additional mer
chandise or cash prizes, including increasing payouts for gambling ac
tivities you are licensed to conduct; and

(6) Licensed manufacturers, distributors, and service suppliers 
may give cash or merchandise items to licensed operators to be used as 
promotional prizes as long as:

(a) The cash or merchandise is offered to all licensed operators; 
and

(b) The gambling promotion is approved by the director or direc
tor's designee when cash or merchandise provided to a licensed opera
tor for a single promotion is over twenty-five thousand dollars; and

(7) In order for a licensed manufacturer, distributor, and serv
ice supplier to receive approval, the plan for the gambling promotion 
must be submitted to the director at least ninety days in advance of 
the intended start date. The promotion must include sufficient infor
mation for the director's approval, comply with all applicable federal 
and state laws, and include:

(a) The gambling promotion rules and restrictions; and
(b) How the operator will safeguard the prizes; and
(c) How the prizes will be given away; and
(d) The beginning and ending dates for the gambling promotion; 

and
(e) A detailed prize winner's record to be filled out upon com

pletion of the promotion that includes the winner's name, prizes paid 
out, date the prize was awarded; and

(f) Any other information we request; and

[ 1 ] OTS-7965.4

VERSION 3 UP FOR FINAL ACTION

MichelleR
Highlight



(8) You must not give promotional prizes or items based on addi
tional elements of chance except that:

(a) Licensed bingo operators are authorized to give promotional 
prizes or items as part of a bingo game; and

(b) Licensed card rooms are authorized to give promotional prizes 
or items as part of a physical drawing, spinning a wheel, or selecting 
from a group of concealed items; and

(9) You must not combine gambling activities and related gambling 
promotions in any way with a promotional contest of chance as defined 
in RCW 9.46.0356.

[ 2 ] OTS-7965.4



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 07-21-116, filed 10/22/07, effective 
1/1/08)

WAC 230-06-031  Using wheels in promotional contests of chance, 
fund-raising events, or gambling activities.
Promotional contests of chance (PCOCs)

(1) Operators may use wheels specifically manufactured for a pro
motional contest of chance (PCOC), whether commercially made or home 
made.

(2) Operators must not use professionally manufactured wheels 
made specifically for gambling activities (for example, Big 6 Wheels) 
in PCOCs unless they receive permission ahead of time from us.
Fund-raising events

(3) Operators may use commercially made wheels in gambling activ
ities for fund-raising events.
Separation of PCOCs from gambling activities and promotions

(4) No wheel may be used in conjunction with their gambling ac
tivities by((:

(a) Card room licensees; or
(b))) pull-tab licensees.

Card rooms, pull-tabs, bingo, raffles
(5) Licensees and operators must not use professionally manufac

tured wheels made specifically for gambling activities (for example, 
Big 6 Wheels) in:

(a) Bingo; or
(b) Card games; or
(c) Pull-tabs.
(6) Operators may use commercially made or home made wheels as 

part of drawings for prizes, good neighbor prizes, or second element 
of chance prizes as part of bingo games, as set out in WAC 230-10-280 
or to award promotional prizes as set out in WAC 230-06-030.

(7) Raffle licensees and operators may use:
(a) Other types of wheels, such as paddle wheels, in raffles; and
(b) Commercially made or home made wheels in an alternative draw

ing format for determining the winner of a raffle. Alternative drawing 
formats are set out in WAC 230-11-055 and 230-11-060.

[ 1 ] OTS-7966.3



       
Post Office Box 1787     ♦     Olympia, WA 98507-1787     ♦     360-352-0514 

 
March 21, 2016 
 
 
Washington State Gambling Commission 
P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA  98504-2400 
 
RE:   Petition for Rule Changes: 
 WAC 230-15-025 - Hours of play 
 WAC 230-06-030 - Restrictions and conditions for gambling promotions 
 WAC 230-06-031 - Using wheels in promotional contests of chance, fund-raising events, or  
  gambling activities - Promotional Contests of Chance (PCOC) 
 WAC 230-15-055 - Limit on number of players at each table  
 
Dear Commissioners: 
 
On behalf of our members, we respectfully submit the attached rules changes for review and 
consideration.   
 
These changes would authorize licensees to: 

• Request the authorization to operate gambling 24 hours a day 7 days a week (as other 
venues are allowed), retaining the requirement of input from local law enforcement; 

• Conduct varied promotions for patrons, within specified parameters, without hindering 
staff with a review of each idea; 

• Utilize spinning wheels in promotional contests of chance and offer prizes or contests 
for patrons with certain hands of cards during play; and  

• Allow patrons to make wagers on the line (line-betting) on all games of baccarat - staff's 
rule change last year allowed this only on non-proprietary games - house banked card 
room licensees only offer proprietary games of baccarat, similar to those offered at 
other venues. 

 
We request that the Commission consider filing these petitions for further discussion.  We will provide 
further information before and during our presentation at the May meeting.  We anticipate letters of 
support from house banked card room licensees will ensue once the petitions appear on the Commission's 
formal agenda. 
 
Thank you in advance for your attention and consideration.     
 
Sincerely, 
 
Dolores A. Chiechi 
Dolores A. Chiechi 
Executive Director 
Attachments 



1

Rancour, Michelle (GMB)

From: Dolores Chiechi <DChiechi@rga-wa.org>
Sent: Monday, April 25, 2016 1:02 PM
To: Trujillo, Dave  (GMB)
Cc: Rancour, Michelle (GMB); Griffin, Tina (GMB); Stueckle, Joshua (GMB)
Subject: Requested May Mtg changes
Attachments: Number of players.docx

Greetings: 
Please accept this as a notice requesting postponement until the July meeting of RGA’s presentation 
and the discussion and possible filing of the “number of players” rule relating to mini-baccarat. 
 
Please let me know you received this request.   
 
Thank you for your attention to and consideration of this request. 
 
Dolores A Chiechi 
Executive Director 
Recreational Gaming Association 
PO Box 1787 
Olympia, WA  98507-1787 
360-352-0514 office 
WWW.RGA-WA.ORG 
 
UNITED WE STAND - DIVIDED WE FOLD 
 











From: Arrona, Hollee (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: FW: Washington State Gambling Commission - Notice of Rule Making
Date: Tuesday, May 17, 2016 9:50:25 AM
Attachments: 05 09 2016 Notice of Rule Making - with attachments.docx

From: Jim Wisler [mailto:jwisler@masque.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, May 17, 2016 2:00 AM
To: Arrona, Hollee (GMB) <hollee.arrona@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: LaMont, Jennifer (GMB) <jennifer.lamont@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: RE: Washington State Gambling Commission - Notice of Rule Making

Hollee,

Thanks for your email from May 10th.  Unfortunately, after or trip to Washington, I had to travel out
 of state again last week.  I see from your letter that the proposed rule changes were up for
 discussion and possible filing at the May 12 Commission meeting.  Hopefully, it is not too late to
 include Masque’s comments, which are included in the attached redline.

We created the redline by saving the pdf to a docx format, pasting the existing proposed changes as
 redline text on one computer and then adding Masque’s proposed additions/changes in redline text
 on my computer.  The two redlines will show up as different redline colors to easily differentiate the
 two.  For example: on my machine one redline shows up as red text, the other as blue text.

Please let me know if you have any comments and/or questions.

Kind regards,
Jim

From: DONOTREPLY (GMB) [mailto:donotreply@wsgc.wa.gov] 
Sent: May 10, 2016 1:17 PM
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: Washington State Gambling Commission - Notice of Rule Making

A Notice of Rule Making is attached.

Hollee Arrona
Administrative Assistant
Washington State Gambling Commission
P.O. Box 42400
Olympia, WA  98504
(360) 486-3555

Informed Mr. Wisler that he needs to submit 
a new rule petition.

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=HOLLEEA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:donotreply@wsgc.wa.gov

Amended Section



WAC 230-06-030 Restrictions and conditions for gambling promotions.

Licensees may conduct gambling promotions to encourage players to participate in the a gambling activity they are licensed to conduct without our review or approval under these restrictions  and conditions:

(1) You must give all players an equal opportunity to participate; allowing entries based on criteria, for example, time played (including a single wager) or promotions for groups. such as "Ladies' Night" are allowed: and

(2) You must establish rules and restrictions to determine how you will give promotional prizes and items to players. ((You must not give the items based on an element of chance, such as a drawing or spinning wheel, unless you are doing so as part of a bingo game)); and

(3) You must display all rules and restrictions clearly in the gambling area and include them on promotional materials or advertisements; and

(4) Except for members-only progressive raffles conducted as authorized in WAC 230- 11-091, you must not give another chance to participate in a gambling activity we regulate as a promotional item; and 

(5) As part of a gambling promotion, you may add additional merchandise or cash prizes, including increasing payouts, for gambling activities you are licensed to conduct; and

(6) Licensed manufacturers, distributors. and service suppliers may provide or give cash, cash equivalents or merchandise items to licensed operators to be used as promotional prizes; and

(7) You must not give promotional prizes based on additional elements of chance, except:

(a) Licensed bingo operators may give items as part of a bingo game based on an element of chance, such as a drawing or spinning wheel; 

(b) Licensed card rooms may only use physical drawings, card facsimiles, spinning a wheel, or selecting from a group of concealed items; and

Amended Section



(8) Other than noted in WAC 230-06-030, yYou must not combine gambling activities and related gambling promotions in any way with a promotional contest of chance as defined in RCW 9.46.0356.

WAC 230-06-031 Using wheels in promotional contests of chance, fund-raising events, or

gambling activities.

Promotional contests of chance (PCOCs)

(1) Operators may use wheels specifically manufactured for a promotional contest of chance (PCOC), whether commercially made or home made.

(2) Operators must not use professionally manufactured wheels made specifically for gambling activities (for example, Big 6 Wheels) in PCOCs unless they receive permission ahead of time from us.

Fund-raising events

(3) Operators may use commercially made wheels in gambling activities for fund-raising

events.

Separation of PCOCs from gambling activities and promotions

(4) No wheel may be used in conjunction with their gambling activities by((:

(a) Card room licensees; or

(b))) Pull-tab licensees.

Card rooms, pull-tabs, bingo, raffles

(5) Licensees and operators must not use professionally manufactured wheels made specifically for gambling activities (for example, Big 6 Wheels) in:

(a) Bingo; or

(b) Card games; or

(c) Pull-tabs.

(6) Operators may use commercially made or home made wheels as part of drawings for prizes, good neighbor prizes, or second element of chance prizes as part of bingo games, as set out in WAC 230-10-280 or to award promotional prizes on card games as set out in WAC 230- 06-030.






WAC 230-15-685 



Restrictions on progressive jackpots. 



House-banked card game licensees operating progressive jackpots must follow these restrictions and procedures:

(1) Progressive jackpot funds must accrue according to the rules of the game; and

(2) At each gambling table, licensees must prominently post the amount of the progressive jackpot that players can win; and

(3) Licensees must record the beginning amount of each progressive jackpot offered, including explanations for any increases or decreases in the prize amount offered. Licensees must keep this documentation with the progressive jackpot records; and

(4) Licensees may establish a maximum limit on a progressive jackpot prize. If licensees establish a limit, they must make the amount equal to, or greater than, the amount of the jackpot when they imposed the limit. They must prominently post a notice of the limit at or near the game; and

(5) Licensees may connect progressive jackpots offered on the same card game on multiple tables within the same licensed location.

(6) Licensees may connect progressive jackpots on different card games on multiple tables within the same licensed location when the following requirements are met. Only one progressive jackpot may be operated on a card game at a time and the card games must have:

(a) The progressive is based on Match The Dealer on Blackjack and Match The Dealer on Spanish 21; or the same probability of winning the jackpot prize; and

(b) The same winning hand; and

(c) A progressive meter on each table that increases incrementally each time a wager is made.

(7) When gambling equipment will allow a progressive jackpot between different manufacturers, the gambling equipment must be submitted for testing for interoperability in accordance with WAC 230-06-050.



[bookmark: _GoBack]


WAC 230-15-040

Requirements for authorized card games.



(1) In order for a card game to be authorized, it must be approved by the director or the director's designee and must:

(a) Be played with standard playing cards or with electronic card facsimiles approved by the director or the director's designee; and

(b) Offer no more than four "separate games" with a single hand of cards and no more than three of the "separate games" may offer a wager that exceeds five dollars each.

(i) "Separate game" means each individual objective to be achieved within a card game that requires a separate wager and results in a distinct and separate pay out based upon the outcome.

(ii) Progressive jackpots are considered "separate games."

(c) Identify "bonus features" to be allowed in each card game:

(i) "Bonus feature" means an added prize and/or variation based on achieving the predetermined specific hand required to win the prize and does not require a separate wager. More than one "bonus feature" may be offered per card game. A "bonus feature" must not may be combined with a progressive jackpot. Examples include, but are not limited to, "envy" and "share the wealth" "bonus features" when operated as described below.

(ii) A "bonus feature" is not considered a separate game.

(d) Operate "envy" and "share the wealth" "bonus features" as follows:

(i) If a player makes a wager that qualifies for an "envy" "bonus feature" pay out, they are entitled to receive a prize if another player's hand achieves the predetermined specific hand. If a player is playing more than one wagering area or if a hand they are playing is split into two or more hands and any one of their hands achieves the predetermined specific hand, their other hand with a qualifying wager is entitled to receive a prize also.

(ii) If a player makes a wager that qualifies for a "share the wealth" pay out, they are entitled to receive a prize if their hand(s) or another player's hand(s) achieves the predetermined specific hand.

(e) Not allow side bets between players.

(2) Card game licensees may use more than one deck of cards for a specific game. They also may remove cards to comply with rules of a specific game, such as Pinochle or Spanish 21.

(3) Players must:

(a) Compete against all other players on an equal basis for nonhouse-banked games or against the house for house-banked games. All players must compete solely as a player in the card game, except as authorized in approved card game rules for variations of the game of Pai Gow poker where a player may bank the game every other hand; and

(b) Receive their own hand of cards and be responsible for decisions regarding such hand, such as whether to fold, discard, draw additional cards, or raise the wager; and

(c) Not place wagers on any other player's or the house's hand or make side wagers with other players, except for:

(i) An insurance wager placed in the game of Blackjack; or

(ii) "Envy" or "share the wealth" "bonus features"; or

(iii) A tip wager made on behalf of a dealer.

(4) Mini-Baccarat is authorized when operated as described in the commission approved game rules on our web site. However:

(a) Card game licensees may make immaterial modifications to the game; and

(b) Subsection (3) of this section does not apply; and

(c) The number of players is limited under WAC 230-15-055.

(5) A player's win or loss must be determined during the course of play of a single card game, except for:

(a) A carryover pot game. A carryover pot is an optional pot that accumulates as a dealer and participating players contribute to the pot. The winner of the pot is not necessarily determined after one game and the pot can be carried over to more than one game. Carryover pots must not carryover more than ten games. Participants must include at least one player and the dealer competing for the highest qualifying winning hand. Game rules must state how the pot is distributed. If the carryover pot has not been won by the tenth game, the dealer will divide it equally between the remaining players still participating in the pot and the house or, if allowed by game rules, only the players still participating in the pot; and

(b) In the game of Mini-Baccarat, a player may make an optional wager on the player hand winning the next three consecutive games, or the banker hand winning the next three consecutive games.

(c) In Mega Match, a player may be allowed a no-additional-cost entry into a Mega Match Event, which is played with card facsimiles.  The player may win an additional amount based on the outcome of the Mega Match Event.





Amended Section 
WAC 230-06-030 Restrictions and conditions for gambling promotions. 
Licensees may conduct gambling promotions to encourage players to participate in the a 

gambling activity they are licensed to conduct wi thout our review or approval under these 

restrictions  and conditions: 

(1) You must give all players an equal opportunity to participate; allowing entries 

based on criteria, for example, time played (including a single wager) or promotions for 
groups. such as "Ladies' Night" are allowed: and 

(2) You must establish rules and restrictions to determine how you will give promotional 

prizes and items to players. ((You must not give the items based on an element of chance, such as 

a drawing or spinning wheel, unless you are doing so as part of a bingo game)); and 

(3) You must display all rules and restrictions clearly in the gambling area and include 

them on promotional materials or advertisements; and 

(4) Except for members-only progressive raffles conducted as authorized in WAC 230- 

11-091, you must not give another chance to participate in a gambling activity we regulate as a 

promotional item; and  

(5) As part of a gambling promotion, you may add additional merchandise or cash prizes, 

including increasing payouts, for gambling activities you are licensed to conduct; and 

(6) Licensed manufacturers, distributors. and service suppliers may provide or give cash, 

cash equivalents or merchandise items to licensed operators to be used as promotional prizes; and 

(7) You must not give promotional prizes based on additional elements of chance, except: 

(a) Licensed bingo operators may give items as part of a bingo game based on an element 

of chance, such as a drawing or spinning wheel;  

(b) Licensed card rooms may only use physical drawings, card facsimiles, spinning a 

wheel, or selecting from a group of concealed items; and 

(8) Other than noted in WAC 230-06-030, yYou must not combine gambling activities and 

related gambling promotions in any way with a promotional contest of chance as defined in RCW 

9.46.0356.

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: First line:  0.48",
Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start
at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  -0.15" + Indent at: 
0.08", Tab stops:  0.81", Left

Informed Mr. Wisler that he needs to submit  new rule petition.



Amended Section 

WAC 230-06-031 Using wheels in promotional contests of chance, fund-raising events, or 
gambling activities. 

Promotional contests of chance (PCOCs) 

(1) Operators may use wheels specifically manufactured for a promotional contest of 
chance (PCOC), whether commercially made or home made. 

(2) Operators must not use professionally manufactured wheels made specifically for 

gambling activities (for example, Big 6 Wheels) in PCOCs unless they receive permission ahead 
of time from us. 

Fund-raising events 

(3) Operators may use commercially made wheels in gambling activities for fund-raising 
events. 

Separation of PCOCs from gambling activities and promotions 

(4) No wheel may be used in conjunction with their gambling activities by((: 
(a) Card room licensees; or 
(b))) Pull-tab licensees. 

Card rooms, pull-tabs, bingo, raffles 

(5) Licensees and operators must not use professionally manufactured wheels made 
specifically for gambling activities (for example, Big 6 Wheels) in: 

(a) Bingo; or 

(b) Card games; or 

(c) Pull-tabs. 

(6) Operators may use commercially made or home made wheels as part of drawings for 
prizes, good neighbor prizes, or second element of chance prizes as part of bingo games, as set 

out in WAC 230-10-280 or to award promotional prizes on card games as set out in WAC 230- 06-

030. 

Informed Mr. Wisler that he needs to submit  new rule petition.



Amended Section 
WAC 230-15-685 

Restrictions on progressive jackpots. 

House-banked card game licensees operating progressive jackpots must follow these 
restrictions and procedures: 
(1) Progressive jackpot funds must accrue according to the rules of the game; and 
(2) At each gambling table, licensees must prominently post the amount of the progressive 

jackpot that players can win; and 
(3) Licensees must record the beginning amount of each progressive jackpot offered, 

including explanations for any increases or decreases in the prize amount offered. Licensees must keep 
this documentation with the progressive jackpot records; and 

(4) Licensees may establish a maximum limit on a progressive jackpot prize. If licensees 
establish a limit, they must make the amount equal to, or greater than, the amount of the jackpot when 
they imposed the limit. They must prominently post a notice of the limit at or near the game; and 

(5) Licensees may connect progressive jackpots offered on the same card game on 
multiple tables within the same licensed location. 

(6) Licensees may connect progressive jackpots on different card games on multiple tables 
within the same licensed location when the following requirements are met. Only one progressive 
jackpot may be operated on a card game at a time and the card games must have: 

(a) The progressive is based on Match The Dealer on Blackjack and Match The Dealer on 
Spanish 21; or the same probability of winning the jackpot prize; and 
(b) The same winning hand; and 
(c) A progressive meter on each table that increases incrementally each time a wager is made. 

(7) When gambling equipment will allow a progressive jackpot between different 
manufacturers, the gambling equipment must be submitted for testing for interoperability in 
accordance with WAC 230-06-050. 

Informed Mr. Wisler that he needs to submit  new rule petition.



Amended Section 
WAC 230-15-040 

Requirements for authorized card games. 

(1) In order for a card game to be authorized, it must be approved by the director or the director's 
designee and must: 

(a) Be played with standard playing cards or with electronic card facsimiles approved by the 
director or the director's designee; and 

(b) Offer no more than four "separate games" with a single hand of cards and no more than three 
of the "separate games" may offer a wager that exceeds five dollars each. 

(i) "Separate game" means each individual objective to be achieved within a card game that 
requires a separate wager and results in a distinct and separate pay out based upon the outcome. 

(ii) Progressive jackpots are considered "separate games." 
(c) Identify "bonus features" to be allowed in each card game: 
(i) "Bonus feature" means an added prize and/or variation based on achieving the predetermined 

specific hand required to win the prize and does not require a separate wager. More than one "bonus 
feature" may be offered per card game. A "bonus feature" must not may be combined with a 
progressive jackpot. Examples include, but are not limited to, "envy" and "share the wealth" "bonus 
features" when operated as described below. 

(ii) A "bonus feature" is not considered a separate game. 
(d) Operate "envy" and "share the wealth" "bonus features" as follows: 
(i) If a player makes a wager that qualifies for an "envy" "bonus feature" pay out, they are entitled 

to receive a prize if another player's hand achieves the predetermined specific hand. If a player is 
playing more than one wagering area or if a hand they are playing is split into two or more hands and 
any one of their hands achieves the predetermined specific hand, their other hand with a qualifying 
wager is entitled to receive a prize also. 

(ii) If a player makes a wager that qualifies for a "share the wealth" pay out, they are entitled to 
receive a prize if their hand(s) or another player's hand(s) achieves the predetermined specific hand. 

(e) Not allow side bets between players. 
(2) Card game licensees may use more than one deck of cards for a specific game. They also may 

remove cards to comply with rules of a specific game, such as Pinochle or Spanish 21. 
(3) Players must: 
(a) Compete against all other players on an equal basis for nonhouse-banked games or against the 

house for house-banked games. All players must compete solely as a player in the card game, except 
as authorized in approved card game rules for variations of the game of Pai Gow poker where a player 
may bank the game every other hand; and 

(b) Receive their own hand of cards and be responsible for decisions regarding such hand, such as 
whether to fold, discard, draw additional cards, or raise the wager; and 

(c) Not place wagers on any other player's or the house's hand or make side wagers with other 
players, except for: 

(i) An insurance wager placed in the game of Blackjack; or 
(ii) "Envy" or "share the wealth" "bonus features"; or 
(iii) A tip wager made on behalf of a dealer. 
(4) Mini-Baccarat is authorized when operated as described in the commission approved game 

rules on our web site. However: 
(a) Card game licensees may make immaterial modifications to the game; and 
(b) Subsection (3) of this section does not apply; and 
(c) The number of players is limited under WAC 230-15-055. 
(5) A player's win or loss must be determined during the course of play of a single card game, 

except for: 
(a) A carryover pot game. A carryover pot is an optional pot that accumulates as a dealer and 

participating players contribute to the pot. The winner of the pot is not necessarily determined after 

Informed Mr. Wisler that he needs to submit  new rule petition.

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=230-15-055


Amended Section 
one game and the pot can be carried over to more than one game. Carryover pots must not carryover 
more than ten games. Participants must include at least one player and the dealer competing for the 
highest qualifying winning hand. Game rules must state how the pot is distributed. If the carryover pot 
has not been won by the tenth game, the dealer will divide it equally between the remaining players 
still participating in the pot and the house or, if allowed by game rules, only the players still 
participating in the pot; and 

(b) In the game of Mini-Baccarat, a player may make an optional wager on the player hand 
winning the next three consecutive games, or the banker hand winning the next three consecutive 
games. 

(c) In Mega Match, a player may be allowed a no-additional-cost entry into a Mega Match Event, 
which is played with card facsimiles.  The player may win an additional amount based on the outcome 
of the Mega Match Event. 

Informed Mr. Wisler that he needs to submit  new rule petition.



From: Josh Herschlip
To: Newer, Susan (GMB)
Cc: Dolores Chiechi
Subject: Proposed Rule Changes
Date: Thursday, June 16, 2016 12:30:48 AM

My name is Josh Herschlip, I am the Regional Manager for the Buzz Inn Steakhouse
 Corporation, This includes representation of the Buzz Inn Steakhouse and Casino located in
 East Wenatchee.  We also previously owned and operated Ace's Casino which was located in
 Arlington, WA.  I'm contacting you regarding potential rule changes.  The reason I mention
 the previous location is these rule changes could have been potential difference makers in
 our survival.  Aces was located within 10 miles of three tribal casinos (Tulalip, Quil Ceda and
 Angel of the Winds)
*We support the change in the hours of operation.  The forcing of closure to our
 establishments when a potential of business exists and is accessible throughout the state with
 no limitations creates an unfair advantage as well as limits customer base with staggered
 schedules.  Many occupations include swing shift/ grave yard shifts the forced closure drives
 that potential business elsewhere.

*We support the changes in promotion allowances.  These restrictions put a damper on our
 creativity and the possibilities of great promotions to entertain our guests.  These promotions
 are how we create excitement about our businesses and generate new business!  People like
 spinning wheels and the excitement of the possibility.

*We support the increased poker wagers.  Increasing this wager not only helps level the
 playing field that exists in our state but makes it less of a conversation to our guests as what
 the difference of playing poker at a tribal casino and our card rooms.  It also allows greater
 flexibility to games being spread.  I believe most people agree poker is a game of skill and
 proper wagering is an important part of the game and allows players to better protect their
 investment or wager by betting accordingly to pot size.  The greater the spread the better the
 game.  That being said all games approved to be spread or played should allow for he same
 wager to alleviate confusion to our staffs, agents and guests.

*We support the change in rake structure.  Allowing our operations to rake up to 10% of the
 pot allows for the rooms to absorb portions of the costs that have been added to our day to
 day operation.(Health Care, Minimum Wage Increase, Restrictive Scheduling, Sick Leave,
 Salary Structure as well as rising product cost)  These are obviously much greater costs than
 increased rake can fix but it's a step in the right direction for those who offer poker.  We are
 an industry in great need of finding a balance for gaming in our state we need new revenue to
 just survive, while the current rules allow the same industry to thrive with a few major
 adjustments to the rules.

Please support these changes and help the R.G.A. balance out gaming in our state!
Thank You For Your Time.
Josh Herschlip

mailto:josh_herschlip@msn.com
mailto:susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:dchiechi@rga-wa.org


From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: FW: Call to action reply - Public Comment
Date: Thursday, June 16, 2016 10:54:32 AM

FYI
 

From: B.J. Garbe [mailto:bj@lakebowl.com] 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2016 10:17 AM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: Call to action reply
 
Hello Susan,
 
As part of the Call To Action email, I would like to let you know that Lake Bowl/Papa's Sports
 Lounge and Casino is in favor of all rule changes.
 
Thanks,
 
B.J. Garbe, CEO
Lake Bowl Inc. 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov


From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB); Hunter, Amy (GMB)
Subject: FW: Rule Changes - Public Comment
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 4:50:43 PM

Another to add
 

From: Ian Riley [mailto:ianriley@blackpearlspokane.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 2:04 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: Dolores Chiechi <DChiechi@rga-wa.org>
Subject: Rule Changes
 

Attention WSGC
 
To whom it may concern
 
Please find below a list of potential rule changes that I support. I believe all of
 the following to be a positive change to assist Poker to not only remain strong
 but to grow and help support the now smaller number of casinos in
 Washington State.
 

1.         Hours of Operation – would allow for 24-7 operations
2.      Promotions – enhances opportunities for operating promotions
3.    Poker wager limits – raises the poker limit to $100 on all games
 and $300 for poker games that also operate house banked games
4.    Allows the rake at 10% removing the $5 limit and allows for
 $100 wager on all games, not just Texas Hold’em
 

Thank you,
Regards,
Ian Riley

 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-rga.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-rga.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-gt.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-gt.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-tm.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-tm.pdf


From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB); Hunter, Amy (GMB)
Subject: FW: Rule Changes - Public Comment
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 4:48:19 PM

FYI – From Susan’s email.
 

From: Accounting [mailto:accounting@blackpearlspokane.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 2:39 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: Rule Changes
 

Attention WSGC,
 
To whom it may concern
 
Please find below a list of potential rule changes that I support. I believe all of
 the following to be a positive change to assist Poker to not only remain strong
 but to grow and help support the now smaller number of casinos in
 Washington State.
 

1.         Hours of Operation – would allow for 24-7 operations
2.    Promotions – enhances opportunities for operating promotions
3.    Poker wager limits – raises the poker limit to $100 on all games
 and $300 for poker games that also operate house banked games
4.    Allows the rake at 10% removing the $5 limit and allows for
 $100 wager on all games, not just Texas Hold’em

 
 
Thank You,
 
Dan Baker
Controller
Black Pearl Spokane
 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-rga.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-rga.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-gt.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-gt.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-tm.pdf
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/agenda/2016/may-rule-petition-tm.pdf


From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB); Hunter, Amy (GMB)
Subject: FW: Rule Changes for Card rooms - Public Comment
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 4:47:30 PM

FYI – This came in today from Susan’s email.
 

From: Mark and Patricia Greene [mailto:maloa@hotmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 3:29 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: Lance Rinard <lancerin@aol.com>; Dolores (RGA) <DChiechi@rga-wa.org>
Subject: Rule Changes for Card rooms
 
Dear Susan,
 
As owner of Lancer Lanes and Casino I would like to let you know that I'm in favor of all the
 rule changes to do with 24 hours open, Poker limits and rake,  and enhanced opportunities
 for promotions.  Please go ahead and adopt the new rules for these items.
 
Thank you,
 
Mark Greene

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov


From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB); Hunter, Amy (GMB)
Cc: Anderson, Julie (GMB); Arrona, Hollee (GMB)
Subject: FW: Proposed Rule changes - Public Comment
Date: Wednesday, June 22, 2016 12:37:44 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

From: David Fretz [mailto:dfretz@gagaming.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 22, 2016 12:21 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: Proposed Rule changes
 
Susan,
 
Please accept this note in support of the recent rule changes proposed by the RGA.  As an industry,
 House Banked Card Rooms are facing challenges that will result in expense increases that could
 devastate our industry.  As such, enhancements, no matter how small, that could potentially help
 increase revenues or attract/retain our guests would be beneficial.
 
Regards,
 

David Fretz
President - Great American Gaming Corporation
12715 4th Ave W.
Everett, WA  98204
253.480.3000  Ext. 100

 

-----------------------------------------------------------------------
Notice Regarding Confidentiality of Transmission

This message is intended only for the person to whom it is addressed and may contain
 information that is privileged and confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, you are
 hereby notified that any dissemination or copying of this is prohibited. Please notify us of the
 error in communication by telephone (604) 303-1000 or by return e-mail and destroy all
 copies of this communication. Thank you.

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:julie.anderson@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:hollee.arrona@wsgc.wa.gov






From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: FW: petitions
Date: Monday, June 27, 2016 2:10:31 PM

From: George Teeny [mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com] 
Sent: Monday, June 27, 2016 1:47 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: dolores@rga-wa.org; Jo England <jengland@thephoenixcasino.com>
Subject: petitions
 
Afternoon Commissioners
This email is to notify you that my club, The Phoenix Casino, supports the petitions that have been
 submitted to you by private parties and the RGA.
WAC rules to be modified and petitions to follow:

1)      230-15-025 ---- Hours of Operation
2)      230-06-030 ---- Restrictions and Conditions – Gambling Promotions
3)      230-06-031 ---- Promotional Contests of Chance
4)      230-15-080 ---- Authorized Fees and Authorized Methods of Collection
5)      230-15-135 ---- Wagering Limits for Nonhouse-Banked Card Games

 
These petitions, all or in part, will help the gaming industry as a whole.
However, with that being said, none of these petitions are the “golden ticket” for the commercial
 clubs to grow and prosper in the years ahead. The only thing that might have that affect will be
 some form of electronic (gaming) pull tab machines.
 
thank you for your time and consideration,
sincerely,
george teeny
 
 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov


From: Newer, Susan (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: FW: petitions
Date: Monday, June 27, 2016 2:10:17 PM

From: George Teeny [mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com] 
Sent: Monday, June 27, 2016 1:49 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: dolores@rga-wa.org; Jo England <jengland@thephoenixcasino.com>
Subject: FW: petitions
 
 
Afternoon Commissioners
This email is to notify you that my club, THE LAST FRONTIER CASINO, supports the petitions that
 have been submitted to you by private parties and the RGA.
WAC rules to be modified and petitions to follow:

1)      230-15-025 ---- Hours of Operation
2)      230-06-030 ---- Restrictions and Conditions – Gambling Promotions
3)      230-06-031 ---- Promotional Contests of Chance
4)      230-15-080 ---- Authorized Fees and Authorized Methods of Collection
5)      230-15-135 ---- Wagering Limits for Nonhouse-Banked Card Games

 
These petitions, all or in part, will help the gaming industry as a whole.
However, with that being said, none of these petitions are the “golden ticket” for the commercial
 clubs to grow and prosper in the years ahead. The only thing that might have that affect will be
 some form of electronic (gaming) pull tab machines.
 
thank you for your time and consideration,
sincerely,
george teeny
 
 

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SUSANA
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
micheller
Highlight



 
 
 
 
Tab 3: January 2017 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 
Warren Montney, Lucky Bridge Casino, formerly a 15 table house-banked card room in Kennewick 

(last day of business was 11/30/16) 
Describe the Proposed Change / Background 

 
Mr. Montney is seeking a rule change to help start a live poker game after a player has been eliminated 
from a poker tournament.  
 
The petitioner is seeking a rule change to allow Match Play coupons to be awarded to eligible participants 
of card tournaments as a gambling promotion.  The Match Play coupons could then be used by the card 
tournament players in a live card game after the players finish playing in the card tournament. Players 
would use their money with the Match Play coupon to place their wager in a live poker game.   
 
After further review by staff, the proposed change to WAC 230-15-453 would not allow Match Play 
coupons to be awarded as promotional prizes on nonhouse-banked card games, such as poker. WAC 230-
15-453 is under the title of “Operating House-Banked Card Games.”  Any changes to WAC 230-15-453 
would impact house-banked card games only, which is not what the petitioner requested.   
 
Based on this, staff proposed a new rule, WAC 230-15-353, which will allow Match Play coupons to be 
awarded as promotional prizes on nonhouse-banked card games offered by class F and house-banked card 
room licensees. Commissioners voted to file this rule at the November Commission meeting. This will 
meet the intent of the petitioner’s request.   
 
The proposed rule changes by the Recreational Gaming Association to WAC 230-06-030 (Tab 3), 
gambling promotions, would be necessary in order to achieve the changes sought by Mr. Montney.   
 
 
Attached:  

• September 30, 2016 email from Mr. Montney with the rule language requested. 
• August 23, 2016 email from Mr. Montney to pull rule petition from September and forward to 

October Commission meeting in Spokane. 
• Petition for Adoption, Amendment or Repeal of a State Administrative Rule received on July 18, 

2016 from Mr. Montney.   
 

Licensees Impacted  

New Section 
WAC 230-15-353 Using match play coupons in nonhouse-banked card games. 

Amend 
WAC 230-15-453 Using match play or similar coupons in gambling promotions. 

 
January 2017 – Final Action 
November 2016 – Further Discussion 
October 2016 – Up for Possible Filing 
September 2016 – Study Session 
August 2016 – Study Session 
 



Card room licensees that have card tournaments.  As of September 30, 2016, there were 3 Class F card 
rooms and 50 house-banked card rooms that may offer nonhouse-banked and house-banked card games. 
Both groups can offer tournaments under their license. 
 

Regulatory and Resource Impacts 
Minimal 

Stakeholder Feedback 
Victor Mena, President of the RGA, testified in support of the petition at the October meeting. 

Staff Recommendation 
Final Action with an effective date of 31 days from filing. 

 

  



Filed at the November 2016 Commission Meeting 

 
New Section 

WAC 230-15-353 Using match play coupons in nonhouse-banked 

card games. Match play coupons may be offered as gambling 

promotions in nonhouse-banked card games offered by Class F and 

house-banked licensees with the following restrictions:
 

(1) The coupons have no value and cannot be redeemed for 

cash.
 

(2) Match play coupons may be used as part of a player's 

wager. The dealer will exchange the match play coupon for the 

required amount of chips once the match play coupon is used as 

part of a player's wager and placed into the pot. Upon 

redemption, the coupon is no longer valid, it cannot be reused, 

and must be retained as part of the daily card game records.
 

(3) Restrictions on the use of coupons must be disclosed on 

the coupon.
 

(4) Expiration dates must be included on the coupon.
 

(5) Match play coupon promotions must be given to all 

players eligible for the promotion and may be awarded based on 

the outcome of a card game or tournament.
[]
 

 



AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 08-11-044, filed 5/14/08, effective 
7/1/08)

WAC 230-15-453  Using match play or similar coupons in gambling 
promotions.  Match play coupons may be offered as gambling promotions 
with the following restrictions:

(1) The coupons have no value. Players cannot "double down" on 
the "match play" portion of the wager.

(2) Players may double down on the chip portion of the wager, not 
to exceed maximum wagering limits.

(3) A match play coupon is not considered part of the player's 
wager in determining the amount wagered. Match play coupons may be 
used by players who wager the maximum allowed.

(4) A match play coupon is itself a gambling promotion and cannot 
be awarded as a prize in a promotional contest of chance, as author
ized in RCW 9.46.0356((, or as a prize on a card game)).

(5) Restrictions on the use of coupons must be disclosed on the 
coupon.

(6) Expiration dates must be included on the coupon.
(7) Match play and other similar type coupon promotions such as 

Lucky Bucks and Free Ace, etc., ((may)) must be given to ((partici
pants in a card tournament as long as they are given to all partici
pants and are not awarded based on the outcome of the tournament)) all 
players eligible for the promotion.

(8) Coupon promotions allowing free play must not be given out 
based upon the outcome of a card game or tournament.

[ 1 ] OTS-8366.2

Filed at the October 2016 Commission Meeting 

MichelleR
Highlight



From: Stueckle, Joshua (GMB)
To: Rancour, Michelle (GMB); Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: FW: Petition
Date: Friday, September 30, 2016 3:09:49 PM
Attachments: Montney Petition 10-2016.docx

Here you go!

From: warren m [mailto:warrenmontney@gmail.com] 
Sent: Friday, September 30, 2016 3:06 PM
To: Stueckle, Joshua (GMB) <joshua.stueckle@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: Petition

Josh Enclosed please find the Petition for rule change to file with the commission. I would like
this rule effective date to be 31 days from filing 
Thanks for your Help 
Warren Montney
Lucky Bridge casino 
509.308.4173 Cell

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=JOSHUAS
mailto:michelle.rancour@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov

[bookmark: _GoBack]WAC 230-15-453 Using match play or similar coupons in gambling promotions.

Match play coupons may be offered as gambling promotions with the following restrictions:

(1) The coupons have no value. Players cannot "double down" on the "match play" portion of the wager.

(2) Players may double down on the chip portion of the wager, not to exceed maximum wagering limits. 

(3) A match play coupon is not considered part of the player's wager in determining the amount wagered. Match play coupons may be used by players who wager the maximum allowed.

(4) A match play coupon is itself a gambling promotion and cannot be awarded as a prize in a promotional contest of chance, as authorized in RCW 9.46.0356, or as a prize on a card game.

(5) Restrictions on the use of coupons must be disclosed on the coupon. 

(6) Expiration dates must be included on the coupon.

(7) Match play and other similar type coupon promotions such as Lucky Bucks and Free Ace, etc., mustay be given to all players eligible for the promotion. participants in a card tournament as long as they are given to all participants and are not awarded based on the outcome of the tournament.

      (8) Coupon promotions allowing free play mustay not be given out based upon the outcome of a card game or tournament. 





WAC 230-15-453 Using match play or similar coupons in gambling promotions. 

Match play coupons may be offered as gambling promotions with the following restrictions: 
(1) The coupons have no value. Players cannot "double down" on the "match play" portion of the wager. 
(2) Players may double down on the chip portion of the wager, not to exceed maximum wagering limits.  
(3) A match play coupon is not considered part of the player's wager in determining the amount wagered. 

Match play coupons may be used by players who wager the maximum allowed. 
(4) A match play coupon is itself a gambling promotion and cannot be awarded as a prize in a promotional 

contest of chance, as authorized in RCW 9.46.0356, or as a prize on a card game. 
(5) Restrictions on the use of coupons must be disclosed on the coupon.  
(6) Expiration dates must be included on the coupon. 
(7) Match play and other similar type coupon promotions such as Lucky Bucks and Free Ace, etc., mustay 

be given to all players eligible for the promotion. participants in a card tournament as long as they are given to 
all participants and are not awarded based on the outcome of the tournament. 
      (8) Coupon promotions allowing free play mustay not be given out based upon the outcome of a card game 
or tournament.  

ORIGINAL LANGUAGE 



From: Stueckle, Joshua (GMB)
To: Rancour, Michelle (GMB)
Subject: Fwd: Request for rule change.
Date: Wednesday, August 24, 2016 2:05:24 PM

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Stueckle, Joshua (GMB)" <joshua.stueckle@wsgc.wa.gov>
Date: August 23, 2016 at 12:02:29 PM PDT
To: "Griffin, Tina (GMB)" <tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: "Anderson, Julie (GMB)" <julie.anderson@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: FW: Request for rule change.

Tina,
FYI….
I spoke with Warren about changing to the October commission meeting.  He gladly
 agreed as the Spokane venue is much closer. 
 
Thanks,
Josh
 
From: warren m [mailto:warrenmontney@gmail.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, August 23, 2016 11:54 AM
To: Stueckle, Joshua (GMB) <joshua.stueckle@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: Request for rule change.
 

Josh, 
After our phone conversation today. It apears to me that all parties would be
 better served if we pull my request for a rule change regarding non cash value
 chips/ coupons in player banked poker games off the September agenda, and
 place it on the October Agenda in Spokane. 
Thank you for the heads up regarding this issue 
Warren Montney
Lucky Bridge Casino
Kennewick Wa
Cell 509.308.4173

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=JOSHUAS
mailto:michelle.rancour@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:joshua.stueckle@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:julie.anderson@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:warrenmontney@gmail.com
mailto:joshua.stueckle@wsgc.wa.gov


From: Rancour, Michelle (GMB)
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB)
Subject: FW: Request for rule change. Warren Montney
Date: Wednesday, July 20, 2016 4:10:12 PM
Attachments: 07 2016 Warren Montney Petition.pdf

Tina,
 
I forwarded this on Monday.
 
Michelle
 

From: Rancour, Michelle (GMB) 
Sent: Monday, July 18, 2016 11:50 AM
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB) <tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov>; Anderson, Julie (GMB)
 <julie.anderson@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: Stueckle, Joshua (GMB) <joshua.stueckle@wsgc.wa.gov>; Hunter, Amy (GMB)
 <amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: RE: Request for rule change.
 
Tina, Julie & Josh,
 
Attached is the rule petition received from Mr. Warren Montney in PDF format.
 
I will build his rule making file and take care of the CR-101 to file.
 
 
Michelle Rancour
Assistant to Deputy Director
Washington State Gambling Commission
PO Box 42400, Olympia WA  98504-2400
(360) 486-3447
Twitter @WAGambling
 
 
 

From: Griffin, Tina (GMB) 
Sent: Monday, July 18, 2016 8:14 AM
To: Anderson, Julie (GMB) <julie.anderson@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: Rancour, Michelle (GMB) <michelle.rancour@wsgc.wa.gov>; Stueckle, Joshua (GMB)
 <joshua.stueckle@wsgc.wa.gov>; Hunter, Amy (GMB) <amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: FW: Request for rule change.
 
Hello Julie,
 
We will be getting a rule petition from Mr. Monty this week most likely.  Please to the CAT agenda a

mailto:/O=WA.GOV/OU=GMB/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=MICHELLER
mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
http://www.wsgc.wa.gov/
mailto:julie.anderson@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:michelle.rancour@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:joshua.stueckle@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov















 new rule petition for Mr. Monty.  The below email summarizes his request. 
 
Michelle, once the petition comes in provide it to Julie so she can include it in the CAT packet. 
 
Josh, please work on a rules summary.  It should be brief.  Use the current petitions as an example. 
 Please also check with Mr. Monty to see if he plans on attending the August/Olympia meeting. 
 
Thanks,
Tina
 

From: Newer, Susan (GMB) 
Sent: Friday, July 08, 2016 4:50 PM
To: Griffin, Tina (GMB) <tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov>; Hunter, Amy (GMB)
 <amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov>
Cc: Trujillo, Dave (GMB) <dave.trujillo@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: FW: Request for rule change.
 
This came in Friday afternoon. 
 
Michelle
 
From: warren m [mailto:warrenmontney@gmail.com] 
Sent: Friday, July 08, 2016 4:02 PM
To: Newer, Susan (GMB) <susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: Request for rule change.
 
Susan, I would like to discuss a rule change with you regarding poker. I Have previously
 asked my Gaming agent about this and he said the law does not currently allow it. I would
 like to be able to use "blind chips" in live play poker. they would work as follows. We would
 give them out as " house added money to tournament players or  in other promotional ways.
 They would only be used for the big blind or for the person in the small blind to call the big
 blind amount. They would have zero cash value. but as soon as they are placed into the pot
 the house will replace them with live chips.  
 
There would be no rake on those chips. so if there was a PSJ rake the PSJ dollar would not be
 dropped until  someone calls with their own live chips. If a player has only blind chips in
 front of them they cannot call any raises or bets with blind chips.
 
 If a player has no live chips they would be treated as all in. and all additional action will be in
 a side pot. I feel this is just one of those rules that never got changed you can use "match play
 " or "Free play " coupons on house bank games. When the rule was created for poker they
 made it so you can only use live chips because the pot belongs to the players. As long as the
 rule applies that the house replaces the Blind Chips with live chips as soon as they hit the pot.
 the issue of a player being awarded non cash value chips. is moot. 
 
The other issue is that the house needs to be able to decide if  "non cash value chips"  may go
 apply towards the minimum buy in. 

mailto:tina.griffin@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:amy.hunter@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:dave.trujillo@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:warrenmontney@gmail.com
mailto:susan.newer@wsgc.wa.gov


In years gone buy I filled out rule change request forms. now that link just goes to your email.
 so if that form still exsists please let me know and I will fill one out. Feel free to call me and
 discuss this issue if anything seems unclear or unworkable.
Thanks ,
Warren Montney 
Lucky Bridge Casino
509-308-4173








	Agenda
	November minutes
	Licenses and Class III Employee
	Legislative Update
	Fee Restructure Update
	Tab 2 RGA Promotions
	Tab 3 Montney



